
- 1 - 

 
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
MEETING OF THE AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
WEDNESDAY 9TH NOVEMBER 2022 

AT 6.00 P.M. 
 

PARKSIDE SUITE - PARKSIDE 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors L. C. R. Mallett (Chairman), P. J. Whittaker, 

A. J. B. Beaumont, R. E. Jenkins, J. E. King, A. D. Kriss (Vice-
Chairman), M. Middleton, C. J. Spencer and 
K. J.  Van Der Plank 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Apologies for Absence and Named Substitutes  

 
2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Arrangements  

 
To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary interests or Other 
Disclosable Interests they may have in items on the agenda, and to confirm 
the nature of those interests. 
 

3. Section 24 Report (Pages 1 - 10) 
 

4. Interim Auditor's Annual Report 2020-21 (Pages 11 - 56) 
 

5. Audit Assurance of Safeguarding and Fire Evacuation (Verbal Update)  
 

6. Annual Appointment of Risk Champion  
 

7. Audit, Standards and Governance Committee Work Programme (Pages 
57 - 58) 
 
 
 
 
  

K. DICKS 
Chief Executive  

Parkside 
Market Street 



- 2 - 

BROMSGROVE 
Worcestershire 
B61 8DA 
 
1st November 2022 
 



- 3 - 

 
If you have any queries on this Agenda please contact  

Mat Sliwinski 
 

Parkside, Market Street, Bromsgrove, B61 8DA 
Tel: (01527) 64252 Ext: 3095 

Email: mateusz.sliwinski@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
  
 

GUIDANCE ON FACE-TO-FACE 
MEETINGS 

 

At the current time, seating at the meeting will be placed in such a way as 

to achieve as much space as possible for social distancing to help protect 

meeting participants. 

If you have any questions regarding the agenda or attached papers, 

please do not hesitate to contact the officer named above. 

GUIDANCE FOR ELECTED MEMBERS ATTENDING MEETINGS IN 

PERSON 

 

Members and Officers who still have access to lateral flow tests (LFTs) are 

encouraged to take a test on the day of the meeting.  Meeting attendees who 

do not have access to LFTs are encouraged not to attend the meeting if they 

have if they have common cold symptoms or any of the following common 

symptoms of Covid-19 on the day of the meeting; a high temperature, a new 

and continuous cough or a loss of smell and / or taste. 

 

The meeting venue will be fully ventilated, and Members and officers may need 

to consider wearing appropriate clothing in order to remain comfortable during 

proceedings. 

 

PUBLIC ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS  
 

Members of the public will be able to access the meeting to observe 

proceedings if they wish to do so. Seating will be placed in such a way as to 

achieve as much space as possible for social distancing to help protect meeting 

participants. It should be noted that members of the public who choose to 

attend in person do so at their own risk.  

 

Members of the public who still have access to lateral flow tests (LFTs) are 

encouraged to take a test on the day of the meeting.  Meeting attendees who 



- 4 - 

do not have access to LFTs are encouraged not to attend the meeting if they 

have common cold symptoms or any of the following common symptoms of 

Covid-19 on the day of the meeting; a high temperature, a new and continuous 

cough or a loss of smell and / or taste. 

 

Notes:  

Although this is a public meeting, there are circumstances when Council 

might have to move into closed session to consider exempt or 

confidential information.  For agenda items that are exempt, the public are 

excluded. 

 



- 5 - 

 
 
 
 

INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC 
 

Access to Information  
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 widened the rights of 
press and public to attend Local Authority meetings and to see certain 
documents.  Recently the Freedom of Information Act 2000 has further 
broadened these rights, and limited exemptions under the 1985 Act. 
 

 You can inspect agenda and public reports at least five days before 
the date of the meeting. 

 You can inspect minutes of the Council, Cabinet and its 
Committees/Boards for up to six years following a meeting. 

 You can have access, upon request, to the background papers on 
which reports are based for a period of up to six years from the date 
of the meeting.  These are listed at the end of each report. 

 An electronic register stating the names and addresses and 
electoral areas of all Councillors with details of the membership of 
all Committees etc. is available on our website. 

 A reasonable number of copies of agendas and reports relating to 
items to be considered in public will be made available to the public 
attending meetings of the Council, Cabinet and its 
Committees/Boards. 

 You have access to a list specifying those powers which the Council 
has delegated to its Officers indicating also the titles of the Officers 
concerned, as detailed in the Council’s Constitution, Scheme of 
Delegation. 

 
You can access the following documents: 
 

 Meeting Agendas 
 Meeting Minutes 
 The Council’s Constitution 

 
at  www.bromsgrove.gov.uk 
 

http://www.bromsgrove.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  
Audit, Standards and Governance Committee   9th November 2022 

 
SECTION 24 REPORT 
 
 

Relevant Portfolio Holder  Councillor Geoff Denaro,  
Finance and Enabling Portfolio Holder 

Portfolio Holder Consulted  Yes 

Relevant Head of Service Pete Carpenter 

Report Author Job Title: Interim Director of Finance 
email:peter.carpenter@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
Contact Tel: 0152764252 

Wards Affected N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) consulted N/A 

Relevant Strategic Purpose(s) All 

Non-Key Decision 

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in 
advance of the meeting. 

 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 

 
1.1 The Council has received a Statutory Recommendation from our External 

Auditors Grant Thornton with key reason being the non-delivery of the 
2020/21 financial statements is a key reason.  This report sets out the reason 
for the Statutory Recommendation, and the process the Council now has to 
follow to rectify that position.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
Audit Standards and Governance Committee are asked to Recommend 
to Cabinet and Council that: 
 

1 That the Section 24 Statutory Recommendation is accepted and that 
Council review the recommendation, endorse the actions included in the 
management responses which form the rectification process required as 
per legislation. 

 
3. Background 

 
 Introduction    
 
3.1 The Council has set out in a number of meetings during 2022 the issues it has 

encountered in the implementation of a new financial system in February 
2021 and its knock-on effect in terms of staff retention, delivery of the 2020/21 
Accounts, delivery of 2021/22 in year monitoring, delivery of Government 
Returns being key items.  This position has been 

 Discussed at Audit Standards and Governance Committees in July and 
October as part of the Internal Audit Report items. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  
Audit, Standards and Governance Committee   9th November 2022 

 
 Discussed in Cabinet as Part of the Finance Improvement Recovery 

Report on the 12th October. 

 Discussed at Council on the 17th October as part of the as part of the 
Portfolio Holder for Finance and Governance’s annual report.   

 
3.2 The majority of these issues have been resolved or are in the process of 

being resolved.  This includes the recruitment of a new finance team, delivery 
of monitoring in 2022/23, and compliance reporting.  However, the Council still 
have not been able to complete the 2020/21 Statutory Accounts. This has 
been due to issues in rectifying issues on the cash receipting module of its 
new finance system. This also impacts key reconciliations.  

  
3.3 The external Auditors have noted progress in their 2020/21 Annual Auditors 

Report which is also coming to this Committee for review.  However, they 
have concluded that it is appropriate for them to use their powers to make 
written recommendations under section 24 of the Act, with the key reason 
being the non-delivery of the 2020/21 Statutory Accounts.  Further details are 
set out in the attached report 

 
3.4 Schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires the 

following actions: 
o The Council must consider the recommendation at a meeting held 

before the end of the period of one month beginning with the day on 
which it was sent to the Council. This will take place at the Council 
meeting on the 7th December 

o At that public meeting the Council must decide 
 whether the recommendations are to be accepted; and 
 what, if any, action to take in response to these 

recommendations. 
o Schedule 7 specifies the meeting publication requirements that the 

Council must comply with. 
 
3.5 The report must come to Audit, Standards and Governance Committee 

initially for their discussion, and their views to then be fed into Council in 
December. 

 
3.6 The External Auditors Report sets out that Management state that the 

proposed resolution is now in the final phase of rectification, with regression 
testing of the solution key to its implementation. With the Cash Receipting fix 
implemented, the Council are aiming to have a draft set of accounts ready for 
the end of November. 

 
3.7 Page 4 of the External Audit Report sets out the main issues and the 

Council’s Management Reponses to each of those issues. 
 
 
 

Page 2

Agenda Item 3



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  
Audit, Standards and Governance Committee   9th November 2022 

 
4. IMPLICATIONS 
 
 Financial Implications 
 
4.1 Financial implications are set out in section 3. 
 
 Legal Implications 

 
4.2 This is set out in section 3.4 above.   

 
 Service / Operational Implications  

 
4.3 Non-Delivery of the 2020/21 Accounts is a fundamental deficiency and this is 

part of the Corporate Risk Register and impacts all service areas directly and 
indirectly. 

 
 Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications  

 
4.4 There are none of these within this report. 
 
5. RISK MANAGEMENT    

 
5.1 Non-Delivery of the 2020/21 Accounts is a fundamental deficiency and this is 

part of the Corporate Risk Register. 
 
6. APPENDICES 

 

Appendix A – Bromsgrove District Council Section 24 Statutory 
Recommendation – Grant Thornton. 

 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
None 
 

 
7. KEY 

 
None 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 5

A
genda Item

 3



•

•

P
age 6

A
genda Item

 3



Public

•

•

•

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 3



Public

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 8

A
genda Item

 3



Public

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 3



P
age 10

A
genda Item

 3



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  
Audit, Standards and Governance Committee   9th November 2022 

 
INTERIM AUDITORS ANNUAL REPORT ON BROMSGROVE DISTRICT 

COUNCIL 2020-21 
 
 

Relevant Portfolio Holder  Councillor Geoff Denaro,  
Finance and Enabling Portfolio Holder 

Portfolio Holder Consulted  Yes 

Relevant Head of Service Pete Carpenter 

Report Author Job Title: Interim Director of Finance 
email:peter.carpenter@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 
Contact Tel: 0152764252 

Wards Affected N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) consulted N/A 

Relevant Strategic Purpose(s) All 

Non-Key Decision 

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in 
advance of the meeting. 

 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 

 
1.1 The Interim Auditor’s Annual Report 2020/21sets out the auditor’s view on 

controls within the organisation. Apart from the Statutory Recommendation, 
for which there is a separate Report, there are 5 Key and 13 Improvement 
Recommendations in this report.  The Councils responses and progress in 
delivery of these Recommendations are set out in the Auditors Report. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
Audit Standards and Governance Committee are asked to Recommend 
to Cabinet and Council that: 
 

1 They agree with the 5 Key Recommendations and 13 Improvement 
Recommendations within this report. 

2 They agree with the Management Actions contained within this report will 
rectify these issues. 

3 They highlight any other actions they deem necessary to rectify these 
issues. 

 
3. Background 

 
 Introduction    
 
3.1 The External Auditors at the meeting of Audit Standards and Governance 

Committee on the 12 April 2022 set out their Audit Plan and the revised 
approach to Value for Money Assessments.  This included the three main 
changes arising from the National Audit Office’s (NAO) new approach. 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  
Audit, Standards and Governance Committee   9th November 2022 

 
3.2 This report is the interim auditors annual report.  It will not be able to be 

issued in final until the 2020/21 financial statements are produced and have 
been audited. Grant Thornton have issued a Statutory Recommendation 
which is included as a separate report in this agenda.   This report sets out 
five key recommendations and thirteen improvement recommendations. 

 
3.3 This report covers the arrangements that the Council had in place up to the 

31st March 2021.  The Auditors began their work in February and are pleased 
to see that officers have responded positively to the ongoing discussions and 
have begun to address many of the key concerns.  The Auditors note that the 
changes made will still need to be embedded.  

 
3.4 The report notes that the audit opinion on the 2019/20 Statements was not 

provided until the 5th October 2021.  
 
 Key Recommendations 
 
3.5 There are five Key recommendations which are set out on pages 7 to 11 of 

the Auditors Report. These recommendations are: 
1. The Council needs to ensure that the Medium-term Financial Plan 

presented to Members is completely transparent regarding the financial 
challenge and that any savings schemes included are fully worked up 
and approved by Members in advance. 

2. The Council needs to improve management of key projects, such as 
the financial ledger implementation, to ensure that expected benefits 
are realised. As part of this the Council needs to undertake a 
comprehensive review of the financial ledger implementation and 
ensure lessons are learned for future key projects. 

3. The Council should review and implement effective governance 
arrangements in respect of performance monitoring to allow Members 
to make informed decisions. In order to achieve this the Council should 
reinstate public reporting on performance, linking this to the Council 
Plan and the related strategic objectives, allowing Members to 
scrutinise performance. This should be done at least twice per year. 

4. The Council should review and implement effective governance 
arrangements in respect of risk monitoring to allow Members to make 
informed decisions. In order to achieve this the Council should make 
risk management reporting a standing item on the Audit, Standards & 
Governance Committee agenda, with Members considering the 
Corporate Risk Register and Risk Management arrangements in an 
appropriate forum. 

5. The Council should ensure timely and relevant financial monitoring 
reporting is undertaken and presented to the appropriate public forum. 

 
3.6 In terms of these five key recommendations, the data on pages 7-11 set out 

what these are Key Recommendations and the impact they have, the auditors 
Judgement and summary findings, followed by the Management Response.  

Page 12

Agenda Item 4



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  
Audit, Standards and Governance Committee   9th November 2022 

 
3.7 The Council view is for these five Key Recommendations that management 

actions are in place to mitigate all of them including: 

 The staffing up on the finance team to give the correct capacity for 
delivery of Recommendations. 

 Delivering the 2023/24 MTFP in two Tranches, with the first already in 
the public environment since the 26 October. 

 Having a monthly Cross Council assurance review meeting assessing 
priorities and delivery of other cross cutting meetings. 

 Integrating Performance and Financial monitoring in one report. The 
Quarter 1 combined report was presented to Cabinet on the 12trh 
October. Q2 will be presented on the 23rd November. 

 Risk Monitoring Governance has been updated and reporting through 
to Audit, Standards and Governance Committee on a quarterly basis. 
 

Improvement Recommendations 
 
3.8 The Auditors also comment on the Councils arrangements to secure 

economy, efficiency, and effectiveness in its use of resources.  The majority of 
these points are included in the Improvement Recommendations on pages 
21-33 of the Auditors Report: 

1. The Medium-Term Financial Plan / Budget setting report should be 
linked to specific actions which are set out in the Council Plan to make 
it clearer how investments in services will help to achieve the eight key 
priorities as set out in the Council Plan.  

2. The Council needs to improve capital budgeting and ensure that the 
capital programme is delivered as planned. 

3. The Council should develop a workforce plan / strategy and ensure that 
this aligns to its financial plans. 

4. Financial plans presented to Members should include better 
explanation around the key risks and assumptions as well as sensitivity 
analysis and modelling different scenarios. 

5. The Council should work with Internal Audit to ensure that proactive 
fraud prevention work is included in the audit plan, and the work and 
outcomes are reported to the Audit, Standards & Governance 
Committee. 

6. The Council needs to ensure that internal and external stakeholders, 
including service users, are engaged and consulted in the budget 
setting processes, and that this is documented and reported. 

7. The Council needs to develop quarterly financial monitoring reports so 
that performance information is included in order to better explain 
variances and the financial impact of service decisions. 

8. The Council needs to ensure that budget holders are actively involved 
in budget monitoring and are aware that it is a key part of their role. 

9. The Council need to put in place arrangements to provide independent 
assurance over the accuracy on in-year financial reporting and 
performance information. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  
Audit, Standards and Governance Committee   9th November 2022 

 
10. The Council needs to significantly enhance the use of benchmarking 

costs and performance against other similar bodies. 
11. The Council needs to ensure that the recommendations made by the 

LGA Corporate Peer Challenge in January 2018 and February 2020 
are addressed and that it then further improves by learning from 
exemplar councils across the country. 

12. The Council should ensure that it has an up-to-date procurement 
strategy and that this, and any other key policies and strategies, are 
routinely reviewed and updated. 

13. The Council needs to engage and consult with key stakeholders, where 
appropriate, to determine local priorities for resources or opportunities 
for savings. 
 

3.9 As with the Key Recommendations, the Councils view ids that it has or is in 
the process of integrating these recommendations into normal processing.  

 
 
4. IMPLICATIONS 
 
 Financial Implications 
 
4.1 Financial implications are set out in section 3. 
 
 Legal Implications 

 
4.2 The Council must comply with the Recommendations set out in the Interim 

Auditors Report and the Management Actions set out how this will be 
delivered.   
 

 Service / Operational Implications  
 

4.3 Delivery of the five Key Recommendations and the thirteen Improvement 
Recommendations will impact several key processes.  These changes form 
part of the financial recovery plan. 

 
 Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications  

 
4.4 There are none of these within this report. 
 
5. RISK MANAGEMENT    

 
5.1 Non-delivery of the 2020/21 Accounts is a fundamental deficiency and this is 

part of the Corporate Risk Register as it the delivery of a Balanced Budget. 
 
 
 
 

Page 14

Agenda Item 4



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  
Audit, Standards and Governance Committee   9th November 2022 

 
6. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix A – Interim Auditor’s Annual Report on Bromsgrove District Council 
– Grant Thornton. 

 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
None 
 

 
7. KEY 

 
None 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 17

A
genda Item

 4



Public

 

 

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•

•

•

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 4



Public

 

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•

•

•

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•

•

•

•
•

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•

•

•
•
•

•

•

•

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•

•

•

•

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•

•
•

•

•
•

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•
•

•
•
•

•
•

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 4



Public

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 4



Public

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 4



Public

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 4



Public

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•

•

•

•

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 4



Public

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 4



Public

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•

•
•

•
•

•

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•
•
•

•

•
•

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•
•

•

•

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•

•

•
•

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 4



Public

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•

•
•
•
•

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•

•

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•

•

•

•

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•
•

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 4



Public

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•

•

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•
•

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•
•
•
•
•
•

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•

•

•

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 4



P
age 51

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•

•

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•

•

•

•

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 4



Public

•

•

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 4



Public

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 4



P
age 56

A
genda Item

 4



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE                 
 
 

WORK PROGRAMME 2022/23 
 

9 November 2022 

 

 Section 24 Report 

 Interim Auditor’s Annual Report 2020-2021 

 Audit Assurance of Safeguarding and Fire Evacuation (Chief Executive 

Officer invitation) 

 Annual Appointment of Risk Champion 

 Audit, Standards and Governance Committee Work Programme 

 

January 2023 

 

 Standards Regime - Monitoring Officer’s Report  

 External Audit – Progress / Action Plan Update Report 

 Internal Audit – Progress Report 

 Statement of Accounts 2020/2021  

 Financial Savings Monitoring Report  

 Overall Risk and Corporate Governance Report 

 Risk Champion’s Verbal Update 

 Audit, Standards and Governance Committee Work Programme 

 Grant Thornton – External Audit Plan 2022-2023* 

 Grant Thornton – Progress Report* 

 Treasury Outturn Report* 

 

March 2023 

 

 Standards Regime - Monitoring Officer’s Report  

 Audit, Standards and Governance Committee – Annual Report 2022 - 

2023 

 Grant Thornton – Audit Plan 2023-2024 

 Internal Audit - Draft Audit Plan 

 Statement of Accounts 2021/2022 

 Risk Champion’s Verbal Update 

 Audit, Standards and Governance Committee Work Programme 
 

 

*to be confirmed 

 

 

Page 57

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Section 24 Report
	Appendix A - Bromsgrove DC Section 24 Statutory Recommendation - Grant Thornton

	4 Interim Auditor's Annual Report 2020-21
	Appendix A - 2020-21 Interim Auditor's Annual Report on Bromsgrove DC - Grant Thornton

	7 Audit, Standards and Governance Committee Work Programme

